
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we invite all attendees to advise us of any special accommodations due to disability. The 
meeting place is accessible to persons with disabilities. If assistance is needed to participate, please call the office of the Workforce Solutions for 
North Central Texas at (817) 695-9184. Please submit your request as far as possible in advance of the meeting you wish to attend. Workforce 
Solutions for North Central Texas Board may discuss, deliberate, and take all appropriate action on any matter listed on this agenda and may convene 
into closed executive session in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 


 


 
 
 


NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 


 
Meeting Agenda 


July 27, 2021 
9:30 a.m.- Noon 


Meeting Videoconference: https://zoom.us/j/4235880229 
 


The North Central Texas Workforce Board meeting will be conducted as a telephonic/audio 
meeting. Members of the public wishing to participate may do so by dialing toll free 1-855-965-
2480 and entering access ID # 423 588 0229 when prompted. Alternatively, the meeting will be 
recorded and later posted on the website at https://dfwjobs.com/pastboardpacket.  


Call to Order – Roger Harris, Chair 
 
1) Public Comment 


At this time, the public telephone line will be unmuted and members of the public may 
comment on any item on today's agenda. For the Board’s record, please announce your 
name, city of residence and the agenda item(s) on which you are speaking. A maximum 
three (3) minutes is permitted per speaker. At the conclusion of this opportunity, the public 
telephone line will be muted for the duration of the meeting. 


 
2) Declare Conflicts of Interest 
 
3) Approval of Consent Agenda Items 


a) Approval of the Minutes from the May 25, 2021 Meeting 
b) Child Care Parent Share of Cost Reductions Policy  
c) Child Care Direct Referrals from Recognized Partnerships Policy  


 
4) Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action Regarding 


a) Committee Updates 
i) Strategic Leadership Committee – Kenny Weldon 


(1) WSNCT 2021-2025 Strategic Plan Adoption 
ii) Workforce Development Committee – Jason Gomez 
iii) Oversight & Accountability Committee – Carlton Tidwell 


(1) Performance Update – Michael Nicholas 
(2) Financial Update – Randy Richardson 


iv) Executive Committee – Roger Harris 
(1) North Central Texas Workforce Development Board Bylaws – Carvan Adkins 
(2) Executive Director Recruitment 


 
5) Executive Director’s Report 


a) Child Care Funding Update 
b) 2021-2024 Local Plan  
c) Facilities Update 



https://zoom.us/j/4235880229

https://dfwjobs.com/pastboardpacket





 


WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 
 PAGE 2 
 
 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board of Directors Meeting 


 
6) Announcement of Executive Session 


a) As authorized by Section 551.071 to consult with the Board’s attorney for legal advice 
on any matter listed on the agenda, pending or contemplated litigation, settlement 
offers, or any matter in which the duty of the Board’s attorney to the Board under 
the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas 
clearly conflict with the provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 


b) As authorized by Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the North Central 
Texas Workforce Board reserves the right to adjourn into closed Executive Session at 
any time during the course of this meeting to deliberate the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee 
or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. – Executive Director 
Position. 


 
7) Action as a Result of Executive Session 
 
8) Other Business 
 
9) Adjourn 





		NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

		Meeting Agenda

		July 27, 2021

		1) Public Comment

		At this time, the public telephone line will be unmuted and members of the public may comment on any item on today's agenda. For the Board’s record, please announce your name, city of residence and the agenda item(s) on which you are speaking. A maxim...








600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three 
P.O. Box 5888, Arlington, Texas  76005-5888 


Phone: 817-695-9184 ● FAX: 817-640-6480 
E-mail:  workforce@dfwjobs.com 


 In Partnership with North Central Texas Council of Governments 
 


 


 


Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 
Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 
 


Board Policy Issuance 
 
 
 


Policy Name: Description: 
Child Care Direct Referrals from 
Recognized Partners  


Guidelines for Providing Child Care Referred by 
Recognized Partners 


Date of Approval:  Revision History:  
July 27, 2021    N/A 
Effective Date: Scheduled for Review:  
August 1, 2021 July 27, 2025 
Policy Topic:  Administering Department:  
Child Care Child Care 


                
 
DEFINITIONS: 
Recognized Partnership: a partnership that 
1. exists between an Early Learning Program (ELP) and one of the following: 


• a public school pre-kindergarten provider; 
• local education agency; 
• a Head Start/Early Head Start program; and  


2. requires both parties to enter into an agreement such as a memorandum of understanding; and 
serves children under age six who are dually enrolled in both programs. 


 
POLICY STATEMENT: 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) will support direct referrals from recognized 
partnerships. WSNCT will exempt children directly referred from a recognized partner from the 
waitlist, subject to the availability of funding and the availability of subsidized slots at the ELP. 
Additionally, WSNCT will outreach wait listed families of potentially eligible children and provide 
those families with application and referral information for recognized partnerships and will ensure 
that priority of services is applied to the pool of direct partnership referrals if funding is limited or if 
the number of direct referrals exceeds the number of available subsidized slots at the ELP site. 
 
ACTIONS REQUIRED: 
Child Care Services Subrecipient must establish internal procedures in compliance with this policy. 
 
RELATED POLICIES/RESOURCES: 
Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 20, Chapter 809, Subchapter B, Rule §809.22 Direct 
Referrals to Recognized Partnerships 
Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 20, Chapter 809, Subchapter C, Rule §809.43 Priority for 
Child Care Services 
Texas Workforce Commission WD Letter 07-21: “Implementation of TWC Chapter 809 Child Care 
Services Rule Amendments” 
 
 


POLICY NUMBER: 
CECC01-202107 



mailto:workforce@dfwjobs.com





Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 
Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 
 


INQUIRIES: 
Please contact policy@dfwjobs.com 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Approved by      Reviewed by 
Roger Harris 
Board Chair 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


Debra Kosarek 
Senior Program Manager, Compliance and 
Continuous Improvement 


 



mailto:policy@dfwjobs.com






600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three 
P.O. Box 5888, Arlington, Texas  76005-5888 


Phone: 817-695-9184 ● FAX: 817-640-6480 
E-mail:  workforce@dfwjobs.com 


 In Partnership with North Central Texas Council of Governments 
 


 


 


Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 
Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 
 


Board Policy Issuance 
 
 
 


Policy Name: Description: 
Parent Share of Cost Reductions Guidelines for administering reductions in Child Care 


Parent Share of Cost 
Date of Approval:  Revision History:  
July 27, 2021    N/A 
Effective Date: Scheduled for Review:  
October 1, 2021 July 27, 2025 
Policy Topic:  Administering Department:  
Child Care Child Care 


                
 
DEFINITIONS: 
Parent Share of Cost (PSoC): monthly parent fee assessed to subsidy childcare customers. 
 
Texas Rising Star: certified quality rated Early Learning Program.  
 
POLICY STATEMENT: 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) assesses a monthly parent fee to all 
customers unless the customer is exempt from paying one or is eligible to receive a reduction.  
 
Aligning with the reduced cost of part time childcare a reduction of 25% in the PSoC will be 
provided for customers who have one or more children that receive part time childcare. The 
reduction will occur at the one (1) year redetermination period for customers currently enrolled. New 
applicants will receive the reduction upon being determined eligible. The reduced PSoC will remain 
in effect during summer months and school breaks. When a customer notifies us that a child is no 
longer needing part time care and is now needing full time care, the reduction will be removed the 
following month after notification.  
 
Additionally, WSNCT realizes and research shows, all children, especially those that are low-
income and non-English speaking benefit most from high quality Early Learning Programs. With an 
eye toward encouraging customers to select Texas Rising Star (TRS) programs as their Early 
Learning Program, a monthly PSoC reduction in the amount of 25% will be applied for choosing a 
TRS quality rated program. Customers currently in care will be provided the option to select a TRS 
program at their (1) year redetermination and new applicants will be provided this option upon being 
determined eligible.  
 
Customers who qualify for both PSoC reductions will only receive one reduction.  
 
ACTIONS REQUIRED: 
Child Care Services Subrecipient must establish internal procedures in compliance with this policy. 


POLICY NUMBER: 
CECC02-201707 



mailto:workforce@dfwjobs.com





Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 
Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 
 


 
 
RELATED POLICIES/RESOURCES: 
Board Policy, “Parent Share of Cost” 
TAC Title 40, Part 20, Chapter 809, Subchapter B, Rule §809.19(a)(1)(B) 
Texas Workforce Commission WD Letter 07-21: “Implementation of TWC Chapter 809 Child Care 
Services Rule Amendments.”  
 
INQUIRIES: 
Please contact policy@dfwjobs.com 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Approved by      Reviewed by 
Roger Harris 
Board Chair 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


Debra Kosarek 
Senior Program Manager, Compliance and 
Continuous Improvement 


 



mailto:policy@dfwjobs.com






  Page 1 
 


BYLAWS OF 
THE NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 


  
ARTICLE 1- NAME 


 
The name of this Organization shall be the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board, 
hereafter referred to as the Board. 
 


ARTICLE 2- PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 
 
This Board is organized for the purposes as specified in the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 
Act of 2014 (hereinafter referred to as WIOA) and the Texas Workforce and Economic 
Competitiveness Act, chapter 668, Act of the 73rd Texas Legislature, Regular Session, 1993 
(Texas Senate Bill 642), as amended by House Bill1863, 74th session, Texas Legislature,1995 and 
any successor acts. The mission of the Board is to advance business-driven talent development 
strategies that promote economic growth, opportunity, and a quality workforce. 
 


ARTICLE 3 – MEMBERSHIP 
 


SECTION 1. GENERAL 
 
Board members are public officials appointed by elected officials as the trustees of the workforce 
development system and are entrusted with significant fiduciary and policy responsibilities, 
including oversight of public funds and implementation of state and federal law. 
 
SECTION 2.  BOARD COMPOSITION 
 
The local Board composition shall comply with criteria established by the State of Texas and 
the Chief Elected Officials of the North Central Texas Workforce Development Area. 
 
SECTION 3. SIZE OF LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
 
The chief elected officials will appoint no less than 25 Board members and not more than 38 
members. 
 
SECTION 4. DUTIES, CONDUCT, AND EXPECTATIONS  
 
Members of the Board shall comply with the Board’s Governance Policies and all provisions 
stipulated in Federal or State law, rule or guidance applicable to the Board’s operations.   
 
Board members shall provide the Board Chair with a written declaration acknowledging that he/she 
has received the Board Member Code of Conduct and Governance Policies and has read and 
understood the conflict of interest provisions and that the Board member agrees to abide by them.   
The Board shall ensure:  
 
 a)  the performance of any and all duties imposed on them collectively or individually by 
 law, or by these Bylaws;  
 







  Page 2 
 


 b)  the development of plans, as well as an oversight and evaluation system for all 
 Workforce development programs in the Area; 
 
 c)  the attainment of effective outcomes consistent with statewide goals, objectives, and 
 performance standards approved by the governor; 
 
 d)  the effective administration or the Workforce Investment Innovation and Opportunities 
  Act of 2014 and such other programs as assigned by law; and  
  
 e)  meetings take place at such times and places as required by these Bylaws.   
 
SECTION 5. COMPENSATION 
 
Members shall serve without compensation except that they shall be allowed reasonable 
advancement or reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. 
 
SECTION 6. VACANCIES 
 
Vacancies on the Board shall exist (1) on the death, acceptance of the resignation by the Chair or 
removal of any member, and (2) whenever the number of authorized Board members is increased. 
 
Any member may resign upon giving written notice and shall be effective upon acceptance of such 
notice by the Board Chair, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such 
resignation. 
 
Any Board member may be removed from office at any time by the CEO who appointed the Board 
member. The Board Chairman shall provide notice of vacancy to the Lead CEO who shall fill the 
vacancy in the required category in accordance with applicable guidelines. 
 
SECTION 7. INDEMNIFICATION OF BOARD AND OFFICERS 
 
All contractors shall indemnify the Board and its officers under the laws of this state to the fullest 
extend permissible. 
 
SECTION 8. INSURANCE FOR AGENTS OF THE BOARD 
 
The Board may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of insurance on behalf 
of any agent of the Board, including a member, officer, or other agent of the Board, against 
liabilities asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's 
status as such, whether or not the Board would have the power to indemnify the agent against such 
liability under these Bylaws or provisions of law. 
 
 
SECTION 9.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
Members shall comply with all conflict-of-interest provisions applicable to the Board by law, rule, 
or policy. 
 







  Page 3 
 


ARTICLE 4 –OFFICERS 
 
 SECTION 1. DESIGNATION OF OFFICERS 
 
The officers of the Board shall be a Chair, the Past Chair, a Vice Chair, and a Secretary. 
 
SECTION 2. ELECTION PROCEDURES 
 
A nominating committee shall be appointed by the Chairman and shall be responsible for 
nominating a slate of officers representing the Board's diverse constituency. In addition, any 
member can nominate a candidate to the slate of nominees. 
 
SECTION 3. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE 
 
The Board shall elect officers for a two-year term. Officers shall not hold this office for more 
than three (3) consecutive terms. 
 
SECTION 4. REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION 


 
Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Board. Any 
officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board Chair. Any such resignation 
shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later date specified therein, and, 
unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to 
make it effective. 
 
SECTION 5. VACANCIES 
 
Any vacancy caused by the death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or otherwise, of any 
officer shall be filled by the Board. In the event of a vacancy in any office other than that of Chair, 
such vacancy may be filled temporarily by Chair appointment until such time as the Board shall 
fill the vacancy. In the event of a vacancy in the office of the Chair, the Vice Chair will assume 
the position of Chair for the remainder of the vacating Chair's term. 
 
SECTION 6. QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES OF CHAIR 
 
The Chair shall be elected from among the private sector members of the Board. The Chair shall 
preside at meetings of the Board. The Chair of the Board shall appoint the Chairperson and 
members of all committees. He or she shall perform all duties incident to his or her office and such 
other duties as may be required by law, by these Bylaws, or which may be prescribed from time 
to time by the Board. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law or by these Bylaws, he or she 
shall, in the name of the Board, execute such contracts, plans, or other instruments which may 
from time to time be authorized by the Board. 
 
SECTION 7. DUTIES OF PAST CHAIR 
 
To ensure the continuity of knowledge and authority, the immediate past Chair of the Board shall 
serve in the position of Past Chair for a period up to two years. The Past Chair shall have other 
powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board or the Board Chair. 







  Page 4 
 


 
SECTION 8. QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES OF VICE CHAIR 
 
The Vice Chair shall be elected from among the private sector members of the Board. In the 
absence of the Chair, or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice Chair shall 
assume all the duties and responsibilities of the Chair. The Vice Chair shall have other powers and 
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by law, these Bylaws, or by the Board. 
 
SECTION 9. QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES OF SECRETARY 
 
The Secretary may be elected without regard to sector representation.  The Secretary shall be 
responsible for oversight of the keeping of the records of the Board's actions. 
 


ARTICLE 5 – MEETINGS 
 


SECTION 1.  TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS  
 
Meetings of the Board shall be held at least annually and at other times.  Meetings shall be held in 
accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  Meetings shall be held at such a place as is 
designated from time to time. 
 
SECTION 2. ANNUAL MEETING 
 
An annual meeting of the members shall be held in conjunction with the CEOs.  At the annual 
meeting the members shall receive reports on the activities and accomplishments of the Board. 
 
SECTION 3.   SPECIAL MEETINGS 
 
Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the Executive Committee, by the Chair, 
or by a majority of the members of the Board. Special meetings may be held at such place as may 
be designated in the call for a meeting. 
 
SECTION 4.  QUORUM 
 
A quorum shall consist of a majority of the Board, and shall be established on the basis of 
membership, excluding vacancies. At the call to order of each meeting, the exact number of 
members required to achieve a quorum shall be established. Except as otherwise provided under 
these Bylaws, or provisions of law, no business shall I be considered by the Board at any meeting 
at which the required quorum is not present, and the only motion which the Chair shall entertain 
at such meeting is a motion to adjourn. Each member of the Board shall be entitled to one vote. 
Neither alternate representation nor proxy votes are permitted. 
 
 


SECTION 5.  VOTING 
 


All issues to be voted on shall be decided by a simple majority of those counted as present at 
the meeting in which the vote takes place.  Every act or decision done or made by a majority of 
the Board present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board 







  Page 5 
 


unless these Bylaws, or provisions of law require a greater percentage or different voting rules 
for approval of a specific matter by the Board. 


 
SECTION 6. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS 
 
Meetings of the Board shall be presided over by the Board Chair, or, if no such person has been 
so designated or, in his or her absence, by the Vice Chair or, in the absence of each of these persons, 
by a Temporary Chair chosen by a majority of the Board present at the meeting. 
 
SECTION 7.   USE OF TECHONOLOGY TO HOLD MEETINGS 
 
Meetings may be held in person, by video conferencing or by any other means, as long the meeting 
complies with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 


ARTICLE 6- EXECUTIVE COMMITIEE 
 


SECTION 1.  MEMBERSHIP 
 
The officers of the Board, and the Chairs of all standing committees, shall constitute the Executive 
Committee. 
 
SECTION 2. AUTHORITY 
 
The Executive Committee shall have general supervision of the affairs of the Board between busine 
ss meetings and, so far as may be permitted by law and these by-laws, shall exercise all the 
authority of the Board during the intervals between the meetings. 
 
The Committee is subject to the orders of the Board and none of its acts shall conflict with previous 
actions taken by the Board. 
 
By a majority vote of its members, the Board may at any time revoke or modify any or all of the 
Executive Committee authority so delegated. Meetings and action of the Executive Committee 
shall be governed by, notice, and held in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws 
concerning meetings of the Board. 
 
SECTION 3. MEETINGS 
 
The Executive Committee is subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. The Executive Committee 
shall meet as requested by the Chair. 
 


ARTICLE 7- STANDING COMMITTEES 
 


SECTION 1. MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Board may designate and direct the activities of standing committees to provide information 
and to assist the Board in carrying out activities.  Such standing committees shall be chaired by a 
member of the Board, may include other members of the Board and may include other individuals 
appointed by the Board who are not members of the local board and who the local board determines 







  Page 6 
 


have appropriate experience and expertise. 
 
SECTION 2. AUTHORITY 
 
Standing committees shall be advisory unless otherwise required by law. The Board retains the 
responsibility for full review and final decision on all matters.  Unless otherwise provided for in 
these Bylaws, the Board Chair, with concurrence of the Executive Committee, has the authority to 
designate, dismiss or modify all committees for the successful operation of the Board. 
 
SECTION 3. MEETINGS 
 
Standing committee shall operate under a written resolution that is approved by the Board.  The 
resolution shall include a description of the purpose, functions and objectives of the committee, 
membership, and meeting schedule and process. All committees shall provide notice, be held and 
have minutes taken in accordance with accepted Board standards. Committee meetings can be held 
in person, via teleconference or video conference. 
 


ARTICLE 8- AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 
 


 SECTION 1. AMENDMENT 
 
These Bylaws may be amended at a regularly scheduled meeting by a two-thirds vote of Board 
members present and voting. 
 
SECTION 2. ADOPTION OF BYLAWS 
 
The foregoing Bylaws were adopted by two-thirds of the North Central Texas Workforce 
Development Board, present and voting at the meeting ________________, 2021.   
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Chair        Secretary  
 
 








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS 
Bylaws Amendment 


 
Background: 
Texas Government Code §2308.261 prescribes the official role of the governor in the Local Workforce 
Development Board (Board) certification process. It states that the governor shall, certify a Board on 
determining that the Board’s composition is consistent with applicable federal and state requirements 
and meets established state criteria. Additionally, the governor shall, once every two years, certify 
one Board for each local workforce development area in the state. This Subsequent Certification is 
to ensure that all Boards are composed according to state and federal law and are meeting all other 
requirements. The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) uses the following requirements to conduct 
Board review: 


• Board composition must be consistent with Texas Government Code §2308.256 and 40 
TAC §801.1(g) 


• Diversity requirements 
• Industry representation 
• Bylaws 
• Board–Chief Elected Official (CEO) Partnership Agreement 
• Board must show whether it has ensured services that will be delivered in a manner allowing 


the Board to meet local measures 
• Board must show whether it has developed fiscal policies and procedures to ensure that 


financial controls are in place 
 


Information: 
In its Subsequent Certification review of the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board, 
TWC has recommended that the bylaws be revised to indicate the size of the Workforce Board.  
TWC’s CEO Membership Guide identifies the minimum board size as 25.  The authority to set the 
maximum board size belongs to the Chief Elected Officials (CEOs) and is defined in the CEO 
Agreement as 38.   
 
Proposed Bylaws including the following revisions were presented to the North Central Texas 
Workforce Development Board at the May Board Meeting:  


• The addition of Article 3, Section 3 to indicate the size of the board will be no less than 25 
and no more than 38 members, and 


• The revision of Article 8, Section 1 removing the requirement for a two-meeting process to 
amend the bylaws.    
 


Consistent with the current Bylaws amendment process, staff is now seeking approval to amend.  
 
Recommendation: 
The Executive Committee recommends approval of the amended bylaws by the North Central 
Texas Workforce Development Board.    


 
Approval Date:  July 27, 2021 
 
Attachment: Proposed Bylaws Revision 
 








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
 


NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 


 
Recommendation for Child Care Direct Referrals from Recognized Partners 


 
Background: 
The Texas Workforce Commission issued guidance on April 12, 2021 that requires Workforce 
Development Boards to develop policies to support direct referrals from recognized child care 
partnerships.  
Information:  
 
A recognized partnership is a partnership that: 
 
(1) exists between an Early Learning Program and one of the following: 


(A) a public school pre-kindergarten provider; 
(B) a local education agency; 
(C) a Head Start/Early Head Start program; and  


 
(2) requires both parties to have entered into an agreement, such as a memorandum of 
understanding, and serves children under the age of six who are dually enrolled in both programs. 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) will support direct referrals from recognized 
partnerships and the Child Care Services Subrecipient will establish procedures to ensure that 
children referred from a partnership as described above, are not placed on the WSNCT child care 
waiting list, and are referred for care based on available funding. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Workforce Development Committee recommends that the North Central Texas Workforce 
Development Board approve the Child Care Direct Referrals from Recognized Partners policy by 
the  


 
Effective Date:  July 27, 2021 
 
 
Attachment: Proposed Board Policy on Child Care Direct Referrals from Recognized Partners  
 








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS MEETING 
 


Recommendation for Child Care Parent Share of Cost Reductions 
 


Background: 
The Texas Workforce Commission issued guidance on April 12, 2021 that allows Workforce 
Development Boards to reduce the Parent Share of Cost (PSoC) for customers who have children 
in subsidy childcare part-time and for customers who choose to enroll their children in a certified 
Texas Rising Star Early Learning Program.   
 
Information:  
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) assesses a parent fee for families that 
receive subsidized childcare and who are required to pay a Parent Share of Cost (PSoC). The 
PSoC is determined using a sliding scale fee and is based on the family size, gross monthly income 
and the number of children receiving care.  
 
In an effort to be equitable to all customers who receive subsidy child care services, a 25% 
reduction of a PSoC will be applied to customers who have one or more school aged children 
receiving subsidy child care services. The cost of part time care is lower than full time care and 
reducing the PSoC by 25% aligns with supporting parents in becoming self- sufficient and reducing 
financial hardships. When a customer notifies us of a that a child is no longer using part time care 
and is now needing full time care then the reduction will be removed the following month after 
notification. The reduced PSoC will remain in effect during summer months and school breaks.  
 
In addition, a 25% reduction in the PSoC will be applied to customers who chose a quality rated 
Texas Rising Star Early Learning Program.  Research shows that all children benefit from high 
quality early learning programs, with low-income children and English learners benefitting most. 
Applying this reduction may encourage customers to choose a Texas Rising Star program, as well 
as encourage Early Learning Programs to apply to become Texas Rising Star certified.  
 
Customers who qualify for both PSoC reductions will only receive one reduction.  
 
Recommendation: 
The Workforce Development Committee recommends that the North Central Texas Workforce 
Development Board approve the Child Care Parent Share of Cost Reductions Policy.  


 
 


Effective Date:  October 1, 2021 
 
 
Attachment: Proposed Board Policy on Child Care Parent Share of Cost Reductions  
 








 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 


 
Adoption of 2021-2025 WSNCT Strategic Plan  


 
Background: 
During the Summer/Fall of 2020 TIP Strategies facilitated work sessions with the North Central 
Texas Workforce Development Board to develop Key Priorities which would serve as the foundation 
for the 2021-2025 Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) Strategic Plan.  Key 
Priority Statements surrounding Child Care Quality, Career Exploration, and Community 
Partnerships were formally approved by the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board at 
the November 2020 meeting.       
 
Information: 
Following approval of the Key Priorities, TIP Strategies facilitated work sessions with WSNCT staff 
to further develop the plan.  Utilizing the themes identified by the Board during their sessions, TIP 
Strategies facilitated staff sessions to review possibilities and prioritize those most important in 
support of the Key Priorities. Additionally, TIP Strategies incorporated an implementation timeline 
and phasing table which can be used for internal resource planning purposes as well as a 
streamlined overview document that can be shared with the Board.  Finally, the strategic plan also 
includes high level Strategic Indicators related to the Key Priorities. 
 
Tom Stellman of TIP Strategies presented the Final Draft of the plan to the Strategic Leadership 
Committee at the April 2021 meeting highlighting the need for flexibility beyond the Key Priorities in 
order to allow staff to be responsive to the needs of stakeholders which are yet to be defined and 
are likely to be affected as we progress thorough the economic recovery following the pandemic. At 
the May 2021 Board meeting, Kenny Weldon informed the Board that the plan had been presented 
to the committee and that the Final Draft of the plan was included in the May board meeting packet 
for their review.     
 
As we prepare to implement the Strategic Plan, staff is seeking adoption of the 2021-2025 WSNCT 
Strategic Plan, recognizing that while the Key Priorities formally approved by the Board are fixed, it 
is a living document and staff will have flexibility to adjust accordingly beyond the Key Priorities.            
 
Recommendation: 
The Strategic Leadership Committee recommends adoption of the 2021-2025 WSNCT Strategic 
Plan as described above by the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board.  


 
Approval Date:  July 27, 2021 
 
Attachment: Proposed 2021-2025 WSNCT Strategic Plan.  
 
 








 
  


NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


 
 


Meeting Minutes  
May 25, 2021 


9:30 am-12:00 pm 
Zoom Meeting 


Videoconference 
 
 


BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 


BOARD MEMBERS NOT PRESENT: 
 


 
 


 
 
CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS’ MEMBERS PRESENT: 


Mayor Falconer 
 


 
 


OTHERS PRESENT: 
Carvan Adkins 


 


 
 
 
Call to Order – Roger Harris, Chairman Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 
Roger Harris called the meeting to order at 9:31 a.m.    
 
1) Public Comment 
There was no public comment at this time. 
 


Roger Harris Barbara Batista 
Bindu Adlakha Carlton Tidwell 
Chip Evans Ken Peters 
Gae Goodwin Gary Henderson  
Jacqueline Womble  Jason Gomez 
Jenny Morris *late agenda item 4 John Rattan 
Kenny Weldon Leisa House 
Meera Ananthaswamy*late item 4 Mickey Hillock 
Aaron Thibault  Rolanda Macharia 
Roselyn Lane Rhodie Rawls 
Bill King *late- agenda item 3 Tony Curry 
  


 


David Bristol Mike Hinojosa 
Shae Hopkins Robert Hill 
Kristin Grammar  


 







 
Workforce Development Board Meeting Minutes 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 
 


2) Approval of Consent Agenda Items 
a) Approval of the Minutes from the February 24, 2021 Meeting 
b) Development and Maintenance of the Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and 


In-Demand Industries Policy Revision 
c) Priority of Service for Veterans, Qualified Spouses, and Foster Youth Policy Revision 
d) WIOA Adult-Service Priority for Individualized Career and Training Services Policy 


Revision 
e) Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) – Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) 


Funding for Training Programs Policy Revision 
f) Code of Conduct Policy Revision 


 
Aaron Thibault made a motion that the board approve the six consent items. Gae Goodwin 
seconded the motion. None apposed, and the motion was passed. 
 
3) Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action Regarding 


a) Committee Updates 
i) Strategic Leadership Committee – Kenny Weldon 


Kenny Weldon briefly discussed the previous Strategic Leadership Committee 
Meeting that was held on April 20, 2021. In that meeting the committee reviewed the 
Strategic Plan. The Strategic Plan now includes the three priorities as well as the 
purpose and actions for each key priority. Kenny Weldon gave notice to the board 
that committee would be bringing the strategic plan to the next board meeting for 
formal adoption. Cristina Medina informed the board that there is a current RFP out 
for Strategic Planning Services, proposals are due by May 28th.The committee also 
informed the board of their discussion to put together a local Tri-Agency Effort.  
Glynnis Woolridge provided an update on the website redesign.  


ii) Workforce Development Committee – Jason Gomez 
Jason Gomez discussed the previous committee meeting held on April 27th. During 
that meeting there were several policy recommendations approved and moved 
forward for board approval. Danielle Davis gave a brief update on the iWork event 
that happened virtually in Fall of 2020. The next iWork event is planned in the Fall of 
2021 virtually. Several board members did request that we investigate moving this 
event to in person with the ISD’s instead of virtually.  


iii) Oversight & Accountability Committee – Carlton Tidwell 
Carlton Tidwell gave a brief update on the April 27, 2021 Oversight & Accountability 
Meeting. Michael Nicholas reviewed the Performance Update with the cumulative 
numbers through the February 2021. Randy Richardson reviewed the Financial 
Update with the cumulative numbers through the March 2021. 


iv) Executive Committee – Roger Harris 
Cristina Medina discussed the proposed changes to the bylaws and what 
prompted the amendment to the bylaws. During that discussion Cristina 
informed the board that every two years TWC conducts a Subsequent 
Certification of the Board. During that review, this year one of the 
comments we received was to add the size of our board to the bylaws. 
This was originally discussed in the Executive Committee on May 
18th.During that discussion, the Executive Committee also noticed the 
language in Article 8, Section 1 of the bylaws about approving 
amendments and requested a revision to the process. As required by the 
current bylaws, the proposed amendment to the bylaws is being brought to 
the board today for review and will be brought to the next board meeting 
for action by the Board.       







 
Workforce Development Board Meeting Minutes 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 
 


 
4) Executive Director’s Report 


a) Return to Office Plans 
David Setzer discussed what the contractor and local board staff were doing to re-enter 
the office. The contractor staff within the workforce centers is back in the office almost 
100%. The local board staff is doing a phased back approach with one day a week in 
June and two days a week in July. We will from their reevaluate and come up with a new 
model moving forward. Child care staff will be 100% back in the office as of June 7th.  


b) Child Care Update 
David Setzer informed the committee of the recent changes in the Child Care Program. 
The normal child care at-risk expenditures are behind target. This is primarily due to a 
significant number of new customers being determined ineligible due to work 
requirement, several children falling out of the program when time for renewal and a 
significant Equus staff turnover rate. Lower expenditures are a statewide issue. TWC is 
currently considering a COVID reallocation adjustment for all boards. TWC will de-
obligate all boards for this year and re-obligate it to the FY22 budget. This means $6 
million will be moved to next year’s funding, in addition to the anticipated $10M increase 
in child care funding for FY22; which has the potential to result in more enrollments than 
can be sustained with future funding.  David shared strategies that Equus has initiated to 
improve such as overtime, bringing staff back into the office from the remote working 
environment, increased wages for certain positions to increase talent attraction and 
retention, and continued efforts to improve operational efficiencies (Laserfiche).  The 
committee discussed Equus capacity to handle increased funding and if the contract was 
structured to accommodate the increase.         


c) Unemployment Insurance Update 
David Setzer discussed the changes within Texas, that the governor elected to turn back 
COVID-19 stimulus checks effective June 26, 2021. The three-hundred-dollar payment 
that was going to run through September will now end three months early.  


d) Cybersecurity Update 
David Setzer informed the board that TWC has been subjecting its cyber security 
activities onto the local boards for several years. They are following the (NIST) National 
Institute of Science and Technology assessment. The state got funding and provided the 
funding to all 28 local boards to have a cyber security update and examination. AT&T 
performed the examination and NCTCOG received a score of three out of five on that 
examination.  


e) Facilities Update  
David Setzer gave a brief update of local workforce center updates over the last year.  


f) NAWB Forum 2021 
The NAWB forum is coming up in Washington D.C. It is being held June 24th-26th 
virtually and in person. The local board staff will not be attending in person. If any board 
members would like to attend in person or virtually, they can get in contact with Sherie 
Conaway.  
 


5) Announcement of Executive Session 
No action was taken.  
 


6) Action as a Result of Executive Session 
No action taken. 


 
7) Other Business 
 







 
Workforce Development Board Meeting Minutes 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 
 


8) Adjourn 
Mickey Hillock made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Gary Henderson seconded the 
motion, and the meeting was adjourned at 11:38 a.m. 





		Meeting Minutes

		May 25, 2021

		BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

		BOARD MEMBERS NOT PRESENT:








   
 


  PAGE | 1 


MARCH 2021 


2021-2025 STRATEGIC PLAN  
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


 







   


  PAGE | i 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
Thank you to the following individuals and organizations for their participation in this planning process. 


David K. Setzer 
Executive Director 


Roger Harris 
Private Sector, Collin County 


David Bristol 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Bindu Adlakha 
Public Employment Services, TWC 


Meera Ananthaswamy 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Chip Evans 
Literacy Council, At Large 


Jason Gomez 
Secondary Education, Kaufman County 


Gae Goodwin 
Private Sector, Denton 


Gary Henderson 
Private Sector, Denton 


Robert Hill 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Mickey Hillock 
Private Sector, Navarro County 


Mike Hinojosa 
Organized Labor, At Large 


Shea Hopkins 
Private Sector, Hood County 


Leisa House 
TWS – Vocational Rehabilitation Services, At Large 


Lisa Huffaker 
Community-Based Organization, Palo Pinto County 


William King, Ph.D. 
Education, Collin County 


Roselyn Lane 
Private Sector, Hunt County 


Rolanda Macharia 
Private Sector, Collin County 


John Rattan 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Rhodie Rawls 
Community-Based Organization, Ellis County 


Aaron Thibault 
Private Sector, Collin County 


Carlton Tidwell 
Private Sector, Kaufman County 


Kenny Weldon 
Community-Based Organization, Erath County 


Jacqueline Womble 
Health and Human Services, At Large 


Dana Buckholt 
Senior Workforce Development Program Manager – 
Operations  


Kelley Fontenot 
Senior Workforce Development Program Manager – 
Child Care 


Debra Kosarek 
Senior Workforce Development Program Manager – 
Compliance and Continuous Improvement 


Cristina Medina 
Senior Workforce Development Program Manager – 
Policy, Planning & Public Affairs 


Anabel Castillo-Soto 
Strategic Initiatives Manager 


TIP Strategies Consulting Team 
Tom Stellman, CEO and Founder; Jaclyn Le, Consultant; 
Meredith Eberle, Designer  


 







   


  PAGE | ii 


CONTENTS 
INTRODUCTION..................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
ORGANIZATIONAL OVERVIEW ............................................................................................................................................... 2 
CORE FUNCTIONS ................................................................................................................................................................. 3 
PRIORITY 1. CHILDCARE QUALITY ......................................................................................................................................... 4 
PRIORITY 2. CAREER EXPLORATION ...................................................................................................................................... 6 
PRIORITY 3. COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS ............................................................................................................................. 8 
STRATEGIC INDICATORS ..................................................................................................................................................... 11 
IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE AND PHASING ........................................................................................................................ 13 
 







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 1 


INTRODUCTION 
The future of work is changing. Automation and new technologies are restructuring entire industries. Workers 
must master new skills at a rapid pace. Education and workforce training systems must prepare students for a 
changing economy. The COVID-19 pandemic has accelerated these trends while also exacerbating the existing 
racial fault lines in our society and economy.  


Workforce development organizations are operating in a new environment in which they are expected to be more 
strategic, agile, and collaborative than ever before. High-performing workforce boards are becoming more 
ambitious in their pursuit of broader community and economic goals. They are expanding their services, tools, 
and partnerships to serve more workers and employers while also driving towards large-scale economic 
prosperity and opportunity in their service areas. 


Within this context, Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) chose to develop a new strategic plan 
designed to elevate its impact and create solutions for complex economic and workforce challenges. This plan 
will guide programs, services, and partnerships delivered in the 14-county North Central Texas Workforce 
Development area so that the region remains competitive, and workers have access to economic opportunities.  


WSNCT is in a prime position to influence change at scale. The organization not only provides direct services to 
jobseekers but also acts as a leader in the regional workforce ecosystem. To achieve its goals, WSNCT must 
continue to evolve and expand its role as a thought leader, convener, and catalyst for meaningful changes in the 
region’s workforce and economy. 


In 2020, WSNCT engaged TIP Strategies (TIP) to assist in developing a five-year strategic plan that will help the 
organization expand its impact and prepare for the future. The priorities in this plan were identified by board 
members in 2020 as core issues for the economic success and advancement of workers. Through a series of 
workshops with the board and staff, the strategies in this plan were identified as ways for WSNCT to continue to 
meet its mission while also evolving its core functions and the increasing the scale of its impact.  


This strategic plan as a static document, but one that invites revisions and amendments as conditions change. 
Now, more than ever, stakeholders should take a dynamic approach to implementation—one that revisits this plan 
on a regular basis to measure progress and to reprioritize strategies and actions as needed. 


  







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 2 


ORGANIZATIONAL OVERVIEW 
The purpose of a strategic plan is to provide a call to action and roadmap for an organization to achieve its 
mission and goals. An effective strategic plan also communicates an organization’s values and priorities to the 
world. Realizing WSNCT’s mission to advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth and 
opportunity will require the organization to work in new and innovative ways.  


WSNCT board members identified three priorities that build on the organization’s vision and mission while 
focusing resources on areas where WSNCT is best positioned to make an impact in the region. While these 
priorities will chart a new path for WSNCT, the organization should continue to provide high-quality services that 
meet community needs and create a skilled workforce prepared for the future. 


VISION MISSION 


WSNCT is the recognized leader in building  
tomorrow’s workforce. 


To advance business-driven solutions that promote 
economic growth, opportunity, and a skilled workforce. 


VALUES 
 


 
 


INCLUSION 
Leverage our  


collective genius. 


 


 
 


COMMUNITY 
We’re in this together. 


 


 
 


LEADERSHIP 
Courage to shape  


a better future. 


 


 
 


TRUST 
Operate with integrity  


and respect. 


PRIORITY AREAS 
 


 
 


CHILDCARE QUALITY 


 


 
 


CAREER EXPLORATION 


 


 
 


COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 


  







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 3 


CORE FUNCTIONS 
The bulk of this strategic plan focuses on three goal areas: childcare quality, career exploration, and community 
partnerships. Later sections of this plan include specific purposes, measures, and actions associated with those 
three goals; however, it is important to note that WSNCT, like other workforce boards, has several core functions 
that allow the organization to add value to the region’s workforce ecosystem.  


Five core functions guide WSNCT’s approach to workforce development. While focus is often placed on programs 
and services to workers, WSNCT can also play a leadership role in the workforce system through its research, 
marketing, partnerships, and advising functions.  


1. PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICE DELIVERY 


High-performing workforce boards operate and support programs that meet the needs of workers and 
businesses. Childcare, education, and workforce training programs are common programs and/or services 
provided by workforce boards, including WSNCT.  


2. RESEARCH AND DATA ANALYSIS 


Many workforce boards measure strategic outcomes related to community and economic outcomes to inform 
program, policy, and investment decisions. Increasing internal capacity to better understand, analyze, and 
communicate data is a core way for WSNCT to add value to the region’s workforce ecosystem.  


• Research focused on childcare quality, future of work trends, and high-demand occupations/industries were 
identified as priority topics. 


• While WSNCT should support research and data-driven decisions across all its goals, childcare quality is an 
area where WSNCT’s thought leadership can be transformative (Purpose 1.2 under Childcare Quality). 


3. MARKETING AND INFORMATION SHARING 


Workforce boards that can clearly communicate a vision, share information, and enhance awareness of 
workforce issues are more effective in reaching their goals. WSNCT board members and staff indicated a need to 
share information about its programs and services to a wider audience.  


• Conducting a brand audit would shed light on how WSNCT and its programs and services are perceived by 
key audiences and help set more targeted marketing goals.  


• WSNCT should better leverage its digital marketing channels by developing and sharing more information 
about research, programs, partner organizations, and other resources. 


4. CONVENING AND PARTNERSHIPS 


Cross-sector partnerships with industry and other partners are now a hallmark activity for high-performing 
workforce boards. WSNCT should expand sector-based partnerships and industry councils to better link 
education, workforce, and business goals. Because WSNCT operates at the intersection of many organizations, 
leveraging its convening power to establish connections and partnerships should be a core function. 


5. CONSULTING AND ADVISING 


WSNCT can leverage its expertise in education and workforce development to support other organizations in the 
region. Board members and staff can provide research, information, and other perspectives to inform the work of 
other organizations with complementary workforce goals. Furthermore, employers also look to WSNCT for its 
expertise in supporting workers and creating more equitable talent strategies for the region.  







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 4 


PRIORITY 1. CHILDCARE QUALITY 
KEY PRIORITY STATEMENT 
Improving the quality of childcare in the 14-county North Central Texas Workforce Development 
area is critical to preparing children for school and supporting their parents in their own learning 
and development. WSNCT believes that high-quality childcare leads to greater school readiness, 
long-term educational attainment, and two-generation economic prosperity. 


PURPOSES AND ACTIONS 
1.1. CHILDCARE COLLABORATIVE. Facilitate collaboration between businesses, early learning programs, and 


education institutions to harness collective impact and align efforts related to accessibility and 
affordability of high-quality childcare. 


1.1.1. Convene a childcare council with early learning programs, industry leaders, community colleges, 
and school districts to identify challenges and collaborative solutions for the region. 


• Host discussions with industry leaders to understand childcare issues that employers and 
workers are facing. 


• Use surveys, virtual discussions, and town halls to bring together employers and share 
information about childcare quality. 


• Examine available resources, funding, and incentives to encourage employers to expand 
childcare options for their employees. 


1.1.2. Partner with school districts and community colleges to strengthen the link between childcare, 
early learning, and long-term educational outcomes. 


• Support alignment of early childhood outcomes provided by early learning programs and 
school districts. 


1.2. FOUNDATIONAL RESEARCH. Expand research and data on the availability of childcare, where childcare 
deserts exist, and other childcare needs in the region. 


1.2.1. Gather information about areas in WSNCT’s region that have a disproportionate lack of early 
learning programs and options. 


• Children at Risk released a childcare desert and affordability map that could be a resource for 
WSNCT to better understand where there is a lack of high-quality childcare.  


• Supplement data with qualitative information gathered from employers, providers, and 
education partners that operate in WSNCT’s service area. 


1.2.2. Provide information about the talent pipeline for educators and early learning programs, including 
skills, credentials, salary, and benefits. 


• Work with community colleges and other workforce organizations to understand challenges 
and opportunities to elevate early childhood educators and early learning programs.  


• Share information with economic development organizations and employers to identify ways 
to increase support for professionals providing childcare in the region. 



https://childrenatrisk.org/childcaredesertmap/





   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 5 


1.3. ELEVATING EDUCATORS. Promote and advocate for elevating the value of early childhood and childcare 
professionals and their importance to economic and educational outcomes. 


1.3.1. Increase the training, including apprenticeships and industry-recognized credentials, for early 
childhood educators and early learning programs. 


• Identify additional resources and incentives to support professional development and 
continuing education for early childhood and childcare professionals. 


• Explore financial incentives that support teachers, directors, and family early learning 
programs to pursue additional education and training while staying in their roles. [Example: 
North Carolina’s Childcare WAGE$ Project] 


1.3.2. Advocate for increased compensation and benefits for early childhood and childcare 
professionals to support their retention and advancement in the field. 


• Partner with regional and statewide education and workforce development organizations to 
promote policies that improve working conditions for teachers and early learning programs. 


OUTCOME INDICATORS 
• PROVIDER QUALITY: 


• Percentage of early learning programs that are Texas Rising Star (TRS) Certified or NAEYC accredited 


• Number and percentage of providers by TRS certification levels 


• ACCESS AND AVAILABILITY (DISAGGREGATE BY RACE AND ETHNICITY):  


• Average cost of childcare compared to median income 


• Percentage of zip codes that are categorized as childcare deserts 


• Percentage of zip codes that are TRS deserts 


• EDUCATOR CREDENTIALS AND COMPENSATION (DISAGGREGATE BY RACE AND ETHNICITY): 


• Number and percentage of childcare workers with a relevant postsecondary degree or industry credential 


• Percentage of childcare and early childhood occupations that pay a living wage 


  



https://earlylearningchallenge.nc.gov/wage#:%7E:text=The%20Child%20Care%20WAGE%24%C2%AE,early%20care%20and%20education%20program.





   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 6 


PRIORITY 2. CAREER EXPLORATION 
KEY PRIORITY STATEMENT 
Opportunities to broaden career awareness and exploration can better connect youth and adults 
to in-demand jobs as well as fulfill the needs of employers. WSNCT will support career 
exploration opportunities that equip workers with the skills and knowledge required for success 
in a rapidly changing and digitally driven economy. 


PURPOSES AND ACTIONS 
2.1. FUTURE OF WORK. Focus on jobs of the future and skill-based career development that will be required for 


success in a digitally driven economy. 


2.1.1. Convene employers, economic development organizations, and education partners to identify 
and focus efforts on a set of emerging industries and occupations.  


• Partner with regional workforce organizations in developing a regional initiative focused on 
the future of work.  


• Co-identify a limited set of industries, occupations, and/or skills that are vital to the region’s 
economy and future prosperity.  


2.1.2. Work with school districts and community colleges to identify core skills (e.g., digital literacy, 
coding, etc.) that support emerging industries and occupations; expand opportunities related to 
those skills. 


2.2. EXPLORATION PIPELINE. Create a comprehensive pipeline of exploration opportunities starting in early 
childhood and extending through postsecondary education. 


2.2.1. Showcase career exploration best practice opportunities across different age groups from early 
childhood through K-12 and postsecondary education to identify gaps and create a 
comprehensive pipeline. 


2.2.2. Engage employers in expanding participation in career exploration opportunities that increase in-
depth information and access to priority career pathways which will be defined based on 
employer input. 


2.2.3. Support education partners in creating career exploration content (e.g., digital tools, webinars, 
etc.) focused on target industries and occupations. 


2.3. TARGETED DUAL-GENERATION SUPPORT. Increase career exploration opportunities that involve both 
parents and students to better share information and support the whole family. 


2.3.1. Target career exploration activities toward underserved regions where parents and youth lack 
access and information about future career pathways. 


2.3.2. Provide consultations and advice to organizations that expand career exploration opportunities 
for students and their families. 


• Share information on apprenticeships, emerging industries, high-demand occupations, etc. 
with ISDs and other workforce organizations to expand parental and student awareness.  


  







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 7 


OUTCOME INDICATORS 
• SKILL COMPETENCIES: 


• Number and growth rate of youth participation in training programs focused on core skills (e.g., coding, 
digital literacy, etc.) 


• APPRENTICESHIP TRAINING: 


• Participation in pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship programs aligned with targeted sectors and 
occupations 


• CREDENTIAL ATTAINMENT: 


• Number and growth rate of graduates with credential or degree related to a targeted sector or occupation 


  







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 8 


PRIORITY 3. COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 
KEY PRIORITY STATEMENT 
Achieving ambitious workforce and economic goals will require cross-sector partnerships that 
create innovative solutions for workers and break down silos between organizations. WSNCT will 
cultivate partnerships at both strategic and operational levels to build awareness of programs, 
share information, and leverage public and private resources to meet goals. 


TYPES OF PARTNERSHIPS 
High-performing workforce boards collaborate with a 
variety of organizations to maximize impact, leverage 
more resources, and measure success toward over-
arching community goals. There is a broad spectrum 
of ways for boards to collaborate with partners. To 
pursue ambitious community and economic goals, 
workforce boards will need to reimagine partnerships, 
working with both public and private sector 
organizations with complementary interests.  


WSNCT is accustomed to managing formal 
partnerships with service providers focused on 
programmatic priorities, such as childcare and career 
exploration. Such program partnerships are necessary 
for service delivery and fulfillment of requirements set 
by funders. Alternatively, strategic partnerships can 
further WSNCT’s mission and vision while supporting 
long-term priorities beyond service delivery. Table 1 
outlines major differences between strategic and 
program-focused partnerships.  


Developing more strategic partnerships as well as 
bolstering internal infrastructure to manage 
programmatic partnerships will be central to achieving the goals set forth by board members. Three focus areas 
for strategic partnerships, including economic development, racial equity and inclusion, and regional partnerships 
with other workforce organizations, were identified by board members and staff. Figure 1 (next page) provides an 
overview of WSNCT’s partnership focus areas. 


  


TABLE 1. PARTNERSHIP CHARACTERISTICS 


Programmatic Partnerships Strategic Partnerships 


► Focuses on program or 
service delivery  


► Facilitates programmatic or 
operational efficiency  


► Guided by short-term 
performance metrics  


► Fulfills requirements from 
federal or state funding 
sources 


► Governed by formal 
contracts or memorandums 
of understanding (MOU) 


► Provides workforce board 
with more direct influence 
and higher degree of control 


► Furthers organizational 
mission, vision, and values 


► Supports long-term 
relationship building and 
priorities 


► Draws on discretionary 
and/or coordinated 
resources 


► Does not require formal 
partnership structure (i.e., 
can be an informal 
collaboration) 


► Requires indirect influence 
and provides workforce 
board with less control 


Note: The characteristics shared are generalizations. Partnerships do not have 
to fulfill every characteristic to be labeled as programmatic or strategic. The 
information shared should be used to provide directional input, not be treated 
as a checklist of requirements.  







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 9 


FIGURE 1. WSNCT PARTNERSHIP FOCUS AREAS 


STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM PARTNERSHIPS 


Economic Development Racial Equity and Inclusion Regional Workforce Boards Internal Infrastructure 


    


PURPOSES AND ACTIONS 
3.1. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. Partner with local and regional economic development organizations to better 


address the workforce needs of employers. 


3.1.1. Increase business retention and expansion (BRE) visits with economic development 
organizations and chambers of commerce. 


3.1.2. Convene economic development partners in the region to address shared workforce 
development challenges. 


3.1.3. Collaborate with economic development organizations to build on existing business surveys or 
create pulse surveys focused on common challenges, including childcare issues, facing 
employers. 


3.2. RACIAL EQUITY AND INCLUSION. Collaborate to build internal and external capacity to serve communities 
of color and eliminate racial inequities in workforce outcomes. 


3.2.1. Disaggregate workforce data by race, ethnicity, and gender to better understand economic and 
workforce challenges for diverse communities. 


3.2.2. Build internal staff capacity to serve diverse communities (e.g., equity training, defining equity 
and inclusion for WSNCT, etc.). 


3.2.3. Align affirmative outreach plans (AOP) under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
(WIOA) with other WSNCT equity and inclusion priorities.  


3.3. REGIONAL WORKFORCE BOARDS. Work with other workforce partners, including the Regional Workforce 
Leadership Council (RWLC), to share relevant data about industries, workforce needs, and programs. 


3.3.1. Create data sharing partnerships with other workforce organizations and workforce investment 
boards (WIBs) to better understand workforce needs across the DFW Metroplex and target 
services.  


3.3.2. Identify common challenges or regionwide opportunities to collaborate on critical workforce 
issues (e.g., preparing for the future of work, increasing quality jobs, supporting economic 
development priorities, etc.). 







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 10 


3.4. INTERNAL INFRASTRUCTURE. Develop internal infrastructure to manage formal programmatic 
partnerships with service providers.  


3.4.1. Establish a referral process, vetting mechanism, and success metrics for formal programmatic 
partnerships focused on service delivery. 


3.4.2. Create a centralized inventory of operational partnerships and utilize a customer relationship 
management (CRM) system in a consistent manner to maintain updated contact information.  


• Develop internal training opportunities so that all teams understand how to use the CRM.  


• Use reports from the CRM to inform decisions and set priorities of the WSNCT Leadership 
Team.  


OUTCOME INDICATORS 
• RESOURCES: 


• Amount ($$) of resources leveraged toward partnership goals from 1) private sector, and 2) other public 
partners 


• PARTNERSHIP VALUE: 


• Partner satisfaction in achieving desired organizational goals 


• OTHER: 


• Other partnership outcomes should be jointly agreed upon by partners and focused on the outcomes 
desired from the collaborative work 


  







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 11 


STRATEGIC INDICATORS 
A critical activity of a high-performing workforce board is the ability to track and measure progress towards a 
series of strategic indicators. Strategic indicators are high-level community outcomes that the board seeks to 
influence. Tracking strategic indicators allows a workforce board to understand community challenges and make 
strategic decisions about how the organization can focus its efforts to best influence change. Moving the needle 
on these indicators will take combined efforts across multiple organizations.  


While WSNCT’s efforts alone are likely insufficient in changing these outcomes, the board should still track and 
focus on these indicators. Regular reporting on strategic indicators allows the board to understand the economic 
context and workforce challenges that the community faces. It provides a picture of the environment in which 
programs and services are delivered.  


Table 2 provides a list of indicators that is intended to focus WSNCT’s staff and board on high-level strategy and 
outcomes; however, staff will also need to identify programmatic metrics and operational outputs to track 
progress towards organizational goals. Strategic indicators are not meant to replace organizational metrics but 
instead focus the board’s attention on community outcomes that it seeks to influence. TIP strongly recommends 
that WSNCT disaggregate indicators as well as internal metrics by race and ethnicity where possible. 


TABLE 2. STRATEGIC INDICATORS 
PRIORITY ALIGNMENT LEGEND:  Childcare Quality  Career Exploration  Community Partnerships 


METRIC DESCRIPTION SOURCE PRIORITY 


Provider quality 


Percentage of providers that are Texas Rising Star (TRS) Certified or 
NAEYC accredited 


Texas Workforce Commission, 
in-house data collection  


Number and percentage of providers by TRS certification levels  Texas Workforce Commission, 
in-house data collection  


Childcare 
access and 
availability  


Average cost of childcare compared to median income United for ALICE1, MIT living 
wage calculator2  


Percentage of zip codes that are categorized as childcare deserts Children at Risk Texas 
Childcare Desert Map3  


Percentage of zip codes that are categorized as TRS deserts Children at Risk Texas 
Childcare Desert Map  


Educator 
credentials and 
compensation 


Number and percentage of childcare workers with a relevant 
postsecondary degree or industry credential 


In-house data collection, 
surveys, and interviews  


Percentage of early childhood and childcare jobs that pay a living wage In-house data collection, 
MIT living wage calculator   


Skill 
competencies 


Number and growth rate of youth participation in training programs 
focused on core skills (e.g., coding, digital literacy, etc.) 


In-house data collection, 
surveys, and interviews  


Apprenticeship 
training 


Participation in pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship programs aligned 
with targeted sectors and occupations 


In-house data collection, 
surveys, and interviews  


Credential 
attainment 


Number and growth rate of graduates with credential or degree related to 
a targeted sector or occupation IPEDS, Emsi – NCES  


 
1 United for ALICE (Asset Limited, Income Constrained, Employed) research center: https://www.unitedforalice.org/texas.  
2 Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) living wage calculator: https://livingwage.mit.edu/states/48/locations.  
3 Children at Risk Texas childcare desert and affordability map: https://childrenatrisk.org/childcaredeserts/.  



https://www.unitedforalice.org/texas

https://livingwage.mit.edu/states/48/locations

https://childrenatrisk.org/childcaredeserts/





   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 12 


Resources Amount ($$) of resources leveraged toward partnership goals from 1) 
private sector, and 2) other public partners 


In-house data collection, 
surveys, and interviews  


Partnership 
value Partner satisfaction in achieving desired organizational goals Survey  


Other Other partnership outcomes should be jointly agreed upon by partners and 
focused on the outcomes desired from the collaborative work TBD  


  







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 13 


IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE AND PHASING 
Strategic plans are living documents. Even in the best of times, economic and workforce contexts shift and evolve 
at a rapid pace. Developing a strategic plan in the middle of a pandemic will require even more flexibility and 
agility. Furthermore, many of the purposes and actions in this plan will push WSNCT to diversify its core functions 
and strengthen areas of work that have not been a big focus in the past. While the priorities and purposes in this 
plan are important markers for WSNCT’s work over the next five years, the implementation details will change.  


WSNCT staff should take a phased approach to implementation. Instead of laying out all the details for every 
priority and purpose, staff can build out detailed implementation plans by year. Table 3 offers a phased approach 
that will allow staff to take a gradual approach to implementing the priorities of this plan and making any 
necessary changes (e.g., resources) required for successful implementation. For example, year one of 
implementation should focus on bringing together new partners, identifying focus areas, and aligning internal 
infrastructure to support new priorities.  


TABLE 3. IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE AND PHASING      


PURPOSE / ACTION YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 
1.1  CHILDCARE COLLABORATIVE 


1.1.1  Convene a childcare council with early learning 
programs, industry leaders, community colleges, and school 
districts to identify challenges and collaborative solutions 
for the region 


     


1.1.2  Partner with school districts and community colleges 
to strengthen the link between childcare, early learning, and 
long-term educational outcomes 


     


1.2  FOUNDATIONAL RESEARCH 
1.2.1  Gather information about areas in WSNCT’s region 
that have a disproportionate lack of early learning programs 
and options 


     


1.2.2  Provide information about the talent pipeline for 
educators and early learning programs, including skills, 
credentials, salary, and benefits 


     


1.3  ELEVATING EDUCATORS 
1.3.1  Increase the training, including apprenticeships and 
industry-recognized credentials, for early childhood 
educators and early learning programs 


     


1.3.2  Advocate for increased compensation and benefits for 
early childhood and childcare professionals to support their 
retention and advancement in the field 


     


2.1  FUTURE OF WORK 
2.1.1  Convene employers, economic development 
organizations, and education partners to identify and focus 
efforts on a set of emerging industries and occupations 


     







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 14 


2.1.2  Work with school districts and community colleges to 
identify core skills (e.g., digital literacy, coding, etc.) that 
support emerging industries and occupations; expand 
opportunities related to those skills 


     


2.2  EXPLORATION PIPELINE 


2.2.1  Showcase career exploration best practice 
opportunities across different age groups from early 
childhood through K-12 and postsecondary education to 
identify gaps and create a comprehensive pipeline 


     


2.2.2  Engage employers in expanding participation in career 
exploration opportunities that increase in-depth information 
and access to priority career pathways which will be defined 
based on employer input 


     


2.2.3  Support education partners in creating career 
exploration content (e.g., digital tools, webinars, etc.) 
focused on target industries and occupations 


     


2.3  TARGETED DUAL-GENERATION SUPPORT 
2.3.1  Target career exploration activities toward 
underserved regions where parents and youth lack access 
and information about future career pathways 


     


2.3.2  Provide consultations and advice to organizations that 
expand career exploration opportunities for students and 
their families 


     


3.1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
3.1.1  Increase business retention and expansion (BRE) 
visits with economic development organizations and 
chambers of commerce 


     


3.1.2  Convene economic development partners in the region 
to address shared workforce development challenges      


3.1.3  Collaborate with economic development organizations 
to build on existing business surveys or create pulse surveys 
focused on common challenges, including childcare issues, 
facing employers 


     


3.2  RACIAL EQUITY AND INCLUSION 


3.2.1  Disaggregate workforce data by race, ethnicity, and 
gender to better understand economic and workforce 
challenges for diverse communities 


     


3.2.2  Build internal staff capacity to serve diverse 
communities (e.g., equity training, defining equity and 
inclusion for WSNCT, etc.) 


     


3.2.3  Align affirmative outreach plans (AOP) under the 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) with other 
WSNCT equity and inclusion priorities 


     







   


WORKFORCE SOLUTIONS FOR NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS STRATEGIC PLAN PAGE | 15 


3.3  REGIONAL WORKFORCE BOARDS 


3.3.1  Create data sharing partnerships with other workforce 
organizations and workforce investment boards (WIBs) to 
better understand workforce needs across the DFW 
Metroplex and target services 


     


3.3.2  Identify common challenges or region wide 
opportunities to collaborate on critical workforce issues 
(e.g., preparing for the future of work, increasing quality 
jobs, supporting economic development priorities, etc.) 


     


3.4  INTERNAL INFRASTRUCTURE      
3.4.1  Establish a referral process, vetting mechanism, and 
success metrics for formal programmatic partnerships 
focused on service delivery 


     


3.4.2  Create a centralized inventory of operational 
partnerships and utilize a customer relationship 
management (CRM) system in a consistent manner to 
maintain updated contact information 


     


 





		Introduction

		Organizational Overview

		Core Functions

		Priority 1. Childcare Quality

		Key Priority Statement

		Purposes and Actions

		Outcome Indicators



		Priority 2. Career Exploration

		Key Priority Statement

		Purposes and Actions

		Outcome Indicators



		Priority 3. Community Partnerships

		Key Priority Statement

		Types of Partnerships

		Purposes and Actions

		Outcome Indicators



		Strategic Indicators

		Implementation Timeline and Phasing



